

IT SERVICES

Introduction to SPSS (version 23) for Windows

Practical workbook

Aims and Learning Objectives

By the end of this course you will be able to:

- prepare data for SPSS
- manipulate data using recode, compute, select and split
- create and run SPSS programs to do simple statistical data analysis.

This includes being able to:

- create frequency tables
- produce graphs
- use crosstabulation, correlation, t-test and non-parametric tests
- move data from other applications into SPSS
- export SPSS output for presentations and publications.

Document information

Course files

This document and any associated practice files (if needed) are available on the web. To find these, go to <u>www.bristol.ac.uk/is/learning/resources</u> and in the **Keyword** box, type the document code given in brackets at the top of this page.

Related documentation

Other related documents are available from the web at:

http://www.bristol.ac.uk/is/learning/resources

There is no introduction to STATA documentation produced by Information Services, but there are short courses on STATA available within the University of Bristol provided by the Department of Social Medicine.



This document is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution-Noncommercial-Share Alike 2.0 UK: England & Wales Licence (<u>http://creativecommons.org/licences/by-nc-sa/2.0/uk/</u>). Its "original author" is the University of Bristol which should be acknowledged as such in any derivative work.

Introduction to SPSS (version 18) for Windows (October 2010) © 2010 University of Bristol. All rights reserved.

Introduction

SPSS provides facilities for analysing and displaying information using a variety of techniques. This document uses version 23 of SPSS for Windows.

Prerequisites

Basic familiarity with Windows and at least an elementary knowledge of simple statistics such as t-tests, chi squared tests, p values and confidence intervals would be useful (statistical theory is not taught on this course).

Contents

Document in	formation
Task 1	Practical exercise in Data Preparation2
Task 2	Starting SPSS4
Task 3	Example dataset5
Task 4	The Data Editor8
Task 5	Naming and defining variables9
	Variable names9
	Variable types10
	Variable width and decimal places12
	Variable labels12
	Value labels13
	Missing values14
	Data display15
	Measurement scale of variables15
	Role of variables16
Task 6	Entering data18
Task 7	Help system21
Task 8	Frequency tables - the frequencies procedure
Task 9	Saving files in SPSS25
	Saving an SPSS data file25
	Saving an SPSS output file25
Task 10	Eeaving SPSS
Task 11	Opening a file28
Task 12	29 Controlling your output
Task 13	Procedure commands - Frequencies
	Using summary statistics for continuous variables – the Descriptives
proced	ure
Task 15	Producing a bar chart from frequencies
Task 16	Displaying histograms
Task 17	Crosstabulation
	Adding cell percents and the chi-square statistic
Task 18	
Task 19	Analysing data in subgroups - Split File44
Task 20	Excluding observations – Select cases
Task 21	Modifying variables48
	Recoding values into a new variable48
	Computing new variables50

	Using the IF Statement to Compute New Variables	51
Task 22	Working with Dates in SPSS	53
Task 23	Correlations	54
Task 24	Creating charts - drawing a scatter plot	56
Task 25	Saving an updated copy of the data	58
Task 26	Getting SPSS to read data from other spreadsheet formats e.g. E	xcel59
	Saving output from SPSS into word processor documents e.g. t Word	62
Task 28	Analysis – Box plot	64
Task 29	Analysis - T-test	67
Task 30	Analysis Non-parametric tests	69
Task 31	Analysis – Other	71
	Graphs	71
Appendix A	References	72

Preparing your data for SPSS

1. Entering data straight into SPSS - See section 5

This method is not a good way to enter a large amount of data, as you will find yourself typing ahead of yourself and making mistakes. Instead consider using Access or Excel.

2. Data from an Access database - See help files on Access

Click on the relevant table of data and export it into an excel file.

3. Data from an Excel workbook

SPSS will read data from an excel workbook, it allows you to specify which worksheet it should use and what range of row and columns it should use also.

Basic rules to allow Excel data to be read into SPSS

Structure

Subjects or samples go down the left side of the page, things that you have recorded about the subjects or sample go across the top

- · Give all the subjects/samples a unique id number
- Only use one row of column headings
- Make the column headings unique
- If possible make the column headings unique within the first 8 digits
- Put all the rows of data onto the same spreadsheet. If you have several sets of data with the same column in each and which you intend to analyse together, for example pupils from different schools, include a column which says which data set they come from, rather than keep them as separate spreadsheets.
- Try not to leave blank rows and columns.

Content

- SPSS can read dates in Excel but only if Excel knows they are dates check this is the case using the format cell feature in Excel.
- If you are entering numbers such as weight, make sure all the values are numbers. Remove *?*, *n/a*, *<10*, etc.
- If the value is missing, either code with a missing value such as 9, or 99 etc, or leave with out entering anything. Do not enter a space or a fullstop.
- If you are entering text such as *yes* or *no*, check that you have always spelt this in the same way. ie. Y will be seen by SPSS as different from *y* and different from "Y" and "YES" and "YES.
- Do not merge cells.
- Do not sort data without taking steps to ensure that all the data is sorted together.
- Avoid putting totals, means, counts or graphs on the same spreadsheet

Task 1 Practical exercise in Data Preparation

Suppose this was a data set that your research assistant had prepared for you. Can you convert this into a usable SPSS data set?

🔀 Mic	rosoft Excel - excel dataset1.xls															
:®) (ile Edit View Insert Format Tools	Data Windo	ow <u>H</u> elp											Тур	e a question for help	8 ×
	j 🖬 🖪 🗿 🖪 💁 🖤 📖 K 🖻			- 😣 Σ	- 21 Z1	1 🕼 🔞		Arial	-	10 - E	IU			% ,		<u>ه م</u> .
1 🛄 🕴	1 1 2 5 5 1 5 5 1 2 4 A															
	121 ▼ 1& A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н		J	K	L	М	N	0	P
1		subied	ts who	were	enrolle	d on Thu	ırsda∨	Subie	ts that	were	enrolled	l on Fri	dav			
2		AA	BB	CC	DD	EE	, ,	FF	GG	HH	П	JJ	KK			
3	1st reading	67	86		99			86		21	54					
4	diastolic blood pressure 1	65			79			72								
5	2nd reading	95	4	n/a	15	78		23	33	53	50	48	1			
	diastolic blood pressure 2	63						71	78							
	compliance	ves	yes	no	No	No		NO		NO			NO			
	total score	2						40		79						
9				-												
10	3st reading	18	44	68	3	9		20	49	29	23	92	5			
11	diastolic blood pressure 3	63	84	85	79	86		79	84	80	89	77	72			
12	4th reading	48	20	97	20	50		18	63	9	75	86	not red	corded		
	diastolic blood pressure 4	70						86		85			n/a			
	compliance	vs		Y	n	N				v		n	not ree	corded		
	total score	57		. 96	<10	30		29		-	/			rged befo	re scorina	=
16														J		
17																
18																
19																
20																
21																
22																
23																
24																
25																
26																
27																
28																
29																
30		-														
31																
	N Sheet1 Sheet2 / Sheet3 /								<						-	>
Ready																

Figure 1 - Example data set

Think about how you need to alter the structure and content of the data using the rules in section 1(3).

Ð	Eile <u>E</u> dit <u>Vi</u> er	w Inse	ert F <u>o</u> rmat	<u>T</u> ools <u>D</u> ata	Window He	slp								Type a que	stion for help	e
3	📬 🖬 🖪 🖨	13	a 🛷 🛍	1 X D B.	- 🍼 🔊 -	(" - 🧕 Σ	- <u>2</u> ↓ <u>X</u> ↓ ∭	-45 i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	Arial	- 10	• B I	⊻∣≣ ≣	≣ 🛃 🛒 %	, 號 🕺 🚝	💷 - 💩	- <u>A</u>
				- 												
			f≈ 2													
	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J	K	L	M	N	0	
1	Subject ID	Day	reading1	diastolic1	reading2	diastolic2	compliance	l total score1	reading3	diastolic3	reading4	diastolic4	compliance2	total score2	comments	
	AA	1	67		95	63	yes	2	18	63	48		yes	57		
	BB	1	86		4		yes	34	44	84	20		yes	39		
	CC	1	54			75		8	68	85	97		yes	96		
	DD	1	99		15	78		11	3	79	20		no		less than 1	0
	EE	1			78	77		46	9	86	50		no	30		
	FF	2	86		23	71		40	20	79	18		no	29		
	GG	2	91	76	33		yes	71	49	84	63		no	8		
	HH	2	21	74	53	74		79	29	80	9		yes	96		
	11	2	54		50		yes	62	23	89	75		yes	32		
	JJ	2	78		48		yes	8	92	77	86	75	no	89		
	KK	2	27	70	1	63	no	26	5	72					discharged	d be
3																
1																
5																
6																
7																
3																
0																
1 2		_														
3 4																
+ 5																
5																
7																
3																
) }																
,)																
1																
2																
- 3																
, 1																
+ 5		-														
5														1		
7														1		
, 8																
a														1		
4	► ►I \ datase	et with	formulars /	data set from	RA datas	et prepared	for SPSS /			<						

The data set that you produce should look something like this:

Figure 2 - Formatted data set

This has been achieved using copy and past special (transpose) and by removing text from the columns and giving the columns easy to read unique labels. The problem with two sections of data, one recorded on one day and the other the next day has been sorted out by using a column labelled day.

There is still one problem of a data point which was labelled less than 10. If you can find out what the threshold value of the assay is, you can sometimes substitute half the threshold value, or ask them to conduct the assay again so that the true value can be ascertained. Less than 10 is not a number SPSS will analyse.

Other data formats:

SPSS will read many types of data set including STATA data files (*.dta), Systat data files (*.sys), SPSS portable files (*.por), lotus files (*.w*), SAS data files, and even text files with delimited or fixed formatted data.

There is sometimes a problem with a new version of software, such that SPSS might not be able to recognise the new format of a data set. In this case it is usually possible to resave it in a previous version of the package so that SPSS can recognise it.

Task 2 Starting SPSS

- 2.1 To open SPSS:
 - From the Start menu go to All Programs and select IBM SPSS 23.0 followed by IBM statistics SPSS 23.0.

Initially the **SPSS Data Editor** window opens up with a queries window superimposed (Figure 3).



Figure 3 – the data view of the data editor window

Select Cancel or Type in data to this query window. The query window then closes.

Tips

When you have been using SPSS at your own PC in the recent past, it will give you the option of opening up the last few files that you accessed in SPSS just like the list available in most Microsoft packages

Task 3 Example dataset

- **Comments** This document uses an example survey and considers some of the analyses that might be carried out on the data. An SPSS dataset is made up of a number of observations, each of which contains a value for each variable in the dataset. You will be instructed how to create the SPSS dataset for the example survey in due course but first you must understand the layout and meaning of the survey questionnaire.
 - **3.1** Imagine that you interviewed some people on their smoking habits using the questions shown below:

Reference number	University of BRISTOL
Smoking Questionnaire	
1. How old were you on your last birthday?	
2. Indicate your sex	Male 🗌 Female 🗌
3. Do you smoke at all?	Yes \square_1 No \square_2 If No, go to question 9
4. Do you smoke cigarettes?	Yes \square_1 No \square_2 If No, go to question 6
5. On average how many cigarettes a day would you say that you smoked?	
6. Do you smoke a pipe?	Yes 🔄 1 No 🔄 2
7. Do you smoke cigars?	Yes 🔄 1 No 📃 2
8. Have you ever tried to give up smoking?	
9. Tell me what you think on each of the foll	owing three statements:-
Tax on tobacco is too high	
strongly disagree 🔲 disagree 🤙	$_2$ agree \square_3 strongly agree \square_4
Smoking is dangerous to your healt	h
strongly disagree 🔲 disagree 🤙	$_2$ agree \square_3 strongly agree \square_4
Smoking should not be allowed in ci	nemas
strongly disagree \Box_1 disagree \Box_2	agree \square_3 strongly agree \square_4
10. Date questionnaire completed	
11. Date thesis submitted	

From 10 completed questionnaires it is possible to create a dataset like the one shown below.

This dataset has 10 observations and 12 variables. The data is in fixed column format; each measurement forms a column and the **values** in each column make up a **variable**. Note that blanks indicate missing values. Each of the items recorded - **Age**, **Sex** and so on - are data values. For **Sex**, **M** and **F** are used to denote male and female, rather than using numeric codes. All the information about a single person makes up one **observation**.

Ref	Age	Sex	Smoke	Smoke	How	Pipe	Cigars	Give	Тах	Health	Cine	Date survey	Date submit
Number				Cigs	many			Up			ma		
1	27	F	1	1	10	2	2	1	3	3	3	02/11/1995	25/09/1995
2	31	М	2						4	2	1	16/11/1995	04/09/1995
3	35	М	2						4	1	1	01/12/1995	21/07/1995
4	58	М	2						3	1	2	17/11/1995	05/09/1995
5	56	М	2						4	3	2	10/11/1995	30/09/1995
6	25	F	1	1	20	2	2	2	3	4	4	02/12/1995	10/08/1995
7	41	F	1	1	30	2	1	1	3	1	3	17/11/1995	24/08/1995
8	38	F	1	1	999	2	2	1	4	4	4	02/12/1995	30/08/1995
9	43	F	1	2		2	1	1	4	2	2	16/11/1995	01/08/1995
10	29	М	1	1	40	2	2	2	2	4	4	02/12/1995	26/09/1995

Table 1 - example data set

From this dataset you can see that the reference number of the first subject is 1, she is 27 and is female. She smokes, and smokes cigarettes, on average 10 per day. She doesn't smoke a pipe or cigars and has tried to give up. She agrees that tax on tobacco is too high and that smoking is dangerous to your health and that smoking should be banned from cinemas.

Later you will be asked to enter these values but first you are asked to consider how variables are defined and what attributes they can have.

Each variable needs to be given a variable name that is used in describing the variable to SPSS. Table 2 lists the names that are to be used in the example and specifies the order in which they are to be given to SPSS. It also suggests suitable labels that can later be associated with the variables to clarify output.

ref_no	Reference number
age	Age last birthday
sex	Sex of respondent
smoker	Do you smoke?
cigs	Do you smoke cigarettes?
num_cigs	How many cigarettes per day?
pipe	Do you smoke a pipe?
cigars	Do you smoke cigars?
give_up	Have you tried to give up smoking?
tax	Do you think tax on tobacco is too high?
danger	Do you think smoking is dangerous to your health?
cinemas	Do you think smoking should be allowed in cinemas?
Date_survey	Date the survey was completed
Date_submit	Date the subject submitted their thesis

 Table 2 – labels given to each variable to clarify output

You should now have all the information necessary to start creating the example dataset in SPSS. First you will use the **Variable View** of the **Data Editor** window to specify the variable names and their attributes.

You should note that this data was collected in 1995 before any of the present day legislation on smoking in public had been introduced.

Task 4 The Data Editor

The **Data Editor** is a worksheet used for entering and editing data. It has two panes, the **Data View** and the **Variable View**. You switch between each by clicking on the tab at the bottom left of the **Data Editor** window.

In general, to enter data in a cell in the worksheet you can use the cursor to click on the desired cell, type in the entry and finish by using the **ENTER** key. If you make a mistake you can overtype all the contents of a cell by a similar process.

If you want to correct just part of a cell then double-click on the cell, then use the direction keys to locate the part you want to change. Correct the error using the **BACKSPACE** key and type the correction, and then use the **ENTER** key to complete the edit. Some cells in the **Variable View** window are limited to specific values. When you click on such a cell a square grey icon appears on the right of the cell. Clicking on this brings up a window that allows values to be entered and changed from a predefined list.

Task 5 Naming and defining variables

- 5.1 To select the Variable View of the Data Editor window:
 - Click on the VARIABLE VIEW tab in the bottom left hand corner of the screen (Figure 4).

_			t0] - PAS <u>D</u> ata					ns <u>U</u> tilitie	hA a	d- <u>o</u> ns <u>V</u>	Vindow	/ <u>H</u> elp		and the second	1000	-		
																	ABC	
		1	lame		Туре	V	Vidth	Decimals		Label		Values		Missing	Columns	Align		Measure
	1																	
	2																	
	3																	
	4																	
	5																	
	6																	
	7																	
	8			_														
	9																	
	10	_																
	11	_											_					
	12	_																
	13																	
	14	_											_					
	15	_											_					
	16	_		_									_					
	17	_																
	18	_											_					
	19	_																
	20 21	_											_					
	21	_											_					
	22	_											_					
	23 24												_					
	24																	
_		1																
Data	a View	Varial	ole View															

Figure 4 - the Variable View of the Data Editor window

Note This window already has a defined structure. There are eleven columns headed: -Name, Type, Width, Decimals, Label, Values, Missing, Columns, Align, Measure and Role.

Each of these headings is used to indicate some facet of the definition of each variable. Their use is described as we proceed to develop our sample dataset.

Variable names

The rules for names are:

- the name must begin with a letter. The remaining characters can be any letter, any digit, a period, or the symbols @, #, _, or \$;
- · variable names cannot end with a period
- · variable names that end with an underscore should be avoided
- the length of the name cannot exceed 64 bytes. Sixty-four bytes typically means 64 characters in single-byte languages (eg, English, French, German) and 32 characters in double-byte languages (eg, Japanese, Chinese, Korean).
- spaces and special characters (eg !, ?, ', and *) cannot be used;
- each variable name must be unique; duplication is not allowed;

- if SPSS comes across a duplication when reading a data set prepared in another package it will create a new variable name such as var0004;
- the underscore character is frequently used where a space is desired in names;
- SPSS may miss out spaces when reading in names from another package such as Excel, ie age group would become agegroup;
- Reserved keywords cannot be used as variable names these are ALL, AND, BY, EQ, GE, GT, LE, LT, NE, NOT, OR, TO and WITH;
- A mixture of uppercase and lowercase characters, and case is preserved for display.
- 5.2 Point and click on the cell in row 1 and column 1. Type *ref_no* in this cell. Use the down arrow to move to row 2 column 1.
 - > Type *age* in this cell. Use the down arrow to move to row 3 column 1.
 - Continue with this process until all 14 variable names from Table 2 are entered in this first column. Your screen should then look like Figure 5.

*Unt	itled1	[DataSet0] - PA	SW Statistics	Data Editor			•	And Company		- and the	
Eile E	dit	<u>V</u> iew <u>D</u> ata	<u>T</u> ransform	<u>A</u> nalyze <u>C</u>	<u>G</u> raphs <u>U</u> tilities	Add- <u>o</u> ns	Window Help				
			, 🗠	2	🖺 📩 🗐	11					ABC
		Name	Туре	Widt	h Decimals	Label	Values	Missing	Columns	Align	Measure
1		ref_no	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	■ Right	🛷 Scale
2		age	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	I Right	🛷 Scale
3		sex	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	■ Right	🛷 Scale
4		smoker	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	I Right	I Scale
5		cigs	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	≣ Right	🛷 Scale
6		num_cigs	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	■ Right	🛷 Scale
7		pipe	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	≣ Right	🛷 Scale
8		cigars	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	■ Right	🛷 Scale
9		give_up	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	ा Right	🛷 Scale
10		tax	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	■ Right	🛷 Scale
11		danger	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	I Right	🛷 Scale
12		cinemas	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	■ Right	🛷 Scale
13		Date_survey	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	3 Right	🛷 Scale
14		Date_submit	Numeric	8	2		None	None	8	■ Right	🛷 Scale
15											
16											
17											
18											
19											
20											
21											
22											
23											
24											
25		4									
Data V	ïew	Variable View									
			,								

Figure 5 - table with variable names in first column

Note When the down arrow is pressed, the 10 columns to the right of the first column fill with values (default values). We can examine these ten columns and if necessary change values in specific cells to reflect properties of our example dataset.

Variable types

The **Type** column is showing **Numeric** for all rows. This means that numeric (number) values will be expected in the dataset relating to these variables. This is correct for all the variables except sex where we have collected data in the form of F for female and M for male, and age where we would like SPSS to record this as a date.

- **5.3** To enter the data as M or F, change the variable type:
 - Point and click on the grey box on the right of the cell giving Type for the variable sex.

🖬 Variable Type		×
🔿 Comma	Width:	8
🔿 Dot	Decimal Places:	2
 Scientific notation 		
🔿 Date		
🔾 Dollar		
Custom currency		
 String 		
ОК	Cancel	Help

Figure 6 - Variable Type options box

A dropdown menu appears offering eight data types (Figure 6). The common items are **Numeric**, **Date**, **Custom currency** and **String**. For a full description of each of the variable types, click on the **Help** button.

- **5.4** To enter alpha characters into the variable **sex**, select data type **String** by clicking on its selection button. Notice that a string of 8 characters is the default. Whilst this would cause no problem, it is more efficient to reduce it to the actual number of characters you are going to input. Therefore change the default of **8** in the box to **1**.
 - > Click **OK** to return to the **Variable View** window.
 - > Click on the variable type options box for the 2 dates at the bottom of the list.

Choose **Date** for these variables.

There are a large number of different ways in which the date can be written. The top option **dd-mmm-yyyy** is probably the safest option, as it is least ambiguous, but if you are using SPSS to enter the data you might consider choosing **dd.mm.yyyy** as the easiest one for entering data. You can switch back to **dd-mmm-yyyy** after the data has been entered.

Variable Type		X
Variable Type Numeric Comma Dot Scientific notation Date Dollar	dd-mmm-yyyy 4 dd-mmm-yy mm/dd/yyyy mm/dd/yy dd.mm.yyyy dd.mm.yy yyyy/mm/dd yy/mm/dd	
Custom currency String	yyddd yyyyddd q Q yyyy Cancel Help	

Figure 7 - Variable Type date options

Variable width and decimal places

The next column is headed **Width** and deals with the maximum number of characters that will be displayed for a particular variable in all output relating to this variable. It does not control the display in the **Data View** window, which is determined by **Columns** - see later. For a numeric variable it needs to be considered alongside the next column labelled **Decimals**. The value in this column indicates the number of decimal places that will be displayed in all output relating to this variable. By default the **Width** value is set to 8 and **Decimals** to 2. This may be felt to be appropriate and not need changing. For finer control of your output, you can alter values as necessary. For a string or date variable, the **Decimals** column has no meaning. For the **Date** variables, the **Width** and **Decimals** columns are fixed by the display version you have chosen.

For the example dataset, it would be better to choose:

Width 1, Decimals 0 for variables smoker, cigs, pipe, cigars, give_up, tax, danger and cinemas.

Width 2, Decimals 0 for variable age.

Width 3, Decimals 0 for variable num_cigs.

Width 4, Decimals 0 for variable ref_no.

Width 1 for string variable sex.

- **5.5** Starting in the first row, fourth column, click on the cell and either type the required decimals value (*0*) or use the small up/down arrows that appear to adjust the value. Move to the third column and change the value to two.
 - **Note** (If you attempt to reduce the **Width** to 2 first, it will fail since a number with 2 (by default) decimal places needs a minimum of 3 columns width).
 - Repeat this process for all the other variables.

Variable labels

The next column is headed **Label** and is used to inform SPSS about the details associated with each variable name. The maximum length of any label is 255

characters and there are no restrictions on what may appear. Spaces are entered just as typed. If you want to specify where a new line appears in a label, type **\n** within the text and SPSS will wrap the label at this point.

- **5.6** Moving to the first row, fifth column, click on the cell and type in the words: *Reference number*. The width of the column can be expanded to allow for the number of characters in the label. To do this, place the cursor on the divide between Label and Values in the table headings, where it will change to a two headed horizontal arrow, and then drag to the right as required.
 - > Move down to row 2, column 5 and type *Age last birthday*.
 - > Continue entering the labels for all the other variables as given in Table 2.
 - To correct any existing labels, double-click on the entry and edit as you would in a word processor.
 - > Alternatively use copy and paste to enter all the labels from a word table in one go.

Value labels

5.7 The next task is to enter Value Labels for each variable if appropriate. These will appear in the Values column. For our first two variables (ref_no and age) there are no Value Labels, so the default entry of None can remain. For sex you can indicate that M is male and F is female.

🗟 V	alue Labels		×
- CV	alue Labels		
Va	alue:		Spelling
La	abel:		
	Add		
	Change		
	Remove		
		OK Cancel Help	

Figure 8 - the value labels options box

- Move to row 3 column 6 and click on the grey box on the right of the cell. A dropdown menu appears so you can provide Value Label information (Figure 8).
- > In the box by the word Value type F. In the box by the word Label type Female.
- > Click on Add and watch the value and its label move to the bottom box.
- ➢ In the box by the word Value now type M and the word Male in the Label box.

Click on **Add**. Now that all the **Value Labels** for this variable are complete (your screen should look like Figure 9), click on **OK** to return to the **Variable View** window.

Value Labels	X
Value Labels Value: F Label: Female Add F = "Female" Change Remove	Spelling
OK Cancel Help	

Figure 9 - the completed value labels options box

Note The first part of the Value Label that you entered appears in the appropriate cell.

- 5.8 The next variable needing a Value Label is smoker:
 - Click on row 4 column 6 and its grey box. Enter the value 1 and label Yes in the dropdown menu box and click Add. Enter the Value 2 and Label No and click on Add. Click on OK.
- **5.9** The variables **cigs**, **pipe**, **cigars** and **give_up** all need the same **Value Labels** as **smoker**. Either you can repeat the above instructions for each variable in turn or take advantage of a useful shortcut:
 - Click in the cell containing the values for smoker. Copy this cell by using either Edit / Copy from the main menu or by clicking the right mouse button and selecting Copy, or by pressing CTRL + C. Point at the cell for Value for variable cigs and paste the current clip board using either Edit / Paste or use the right mouse button and choose Paste, or use CTRL + V. Repeat this process for pipe, cigars and give-up values.
- **5.10** Finally for the variables **tax**, **danger** and **cinemas**, you will need to provide four value labels for each.
 - > Use the basic method to enter this information for the variable **tax**:
 - Value 1 has the label Strongly disagree.
 - Value 2 has the label *Disagree*.
 - Value 3 has the label Agree.
 - Value 4 has the label Strongly agree.
 - > Now copy and paste for the other two variables **danger** and **cinemas**.

Missing values

The next column of the **Variable View** sheet is **Missing Values**. In the statistical analysis of any dataset it is sometimes necessary to exclude cases where the information is not known or not appropriate. An example of this occurs in the variable **num_cigs** in this dataset. The information is missing in two situations; for

non-smokers it is not appropriate and in the data the appropriate cell has been left blank; for one interview, **ref_no 8**, the respondent failed to give an answer to this question (no he did not smoke 999 cigarettes per day!) A number that could not be expected as a genuine response is selected to represent this circumstance. However in any analysis, it should not be considered as it would seriously distort many statistical procedures.

Within SPSS there are two types of missing value - **system-missing** values and **user-defined** missing values. By default, for non-string variables, an empty cell is defined as a system missing value and does not need to be further declared. For user-defined missing values this column of the **Variable View** has to be used.

🗟 Missing Values 🛛 🗙
◯ No missing values
 Discrete missing values
999
Range plus one optional discrete missing value
Low: High:
Discrete value;
OK Cancel Help

Figure 10 - the missing values options box

- Click on row 6, column 7 and then the small grey box at the right of the cell to produce the **Missing Values** dropdown menu (Figure 10).
- > Select the **Discrete missing values** button and enter **999** in the first cell.
- Click on OK and return to the Variable View window. Notice that the value 999 now appears in the missing column for the variable num_cigs.

If entering missing values for string variables, the required discrete value should be entered as characters e.g. X to represent the letter X, a space to represent an empty cell.

Data display

The next two columns (**Columns** and **Align**) are concerned with the display of data in the **Data View** window. For the purposes of this example dataset, the default values of a column 8 characters wide and the values right aligned for numeric variables and left aligned for string variables are fine. When you have entered your data as instructed below, return to the **Variable View** window and change one or more of these values. Then flip to the **Data View** window and see the effect your choice has made.

Measurement scale of variables

The almost final column is concerned with the measurement scale properties of your variable. In statistics certain procedures are only appropriate for variables measured on specific scales of measurement. The measurement characteristics recognised by SPSS are as follows:

scale	to represent a numeric variable that can take discrete or continuous values along a range
ordinal	to represent values that, although numeric, only represent an ordered listing of such values
nominal	to represent values that are simply names

You should be able to recognise that in the example dataset, there are:

- 6 nominal measures sex, smoker, cigs, pipe, cigars and give up.
- 3 ordinal measures tax, danger and cinemas.
- 3 scale measures **ref_no**, **age** and **num_cigs** (**ref_num** could be nominal, ordinal or scale!)
- Plus 2 date variables which are considered by SPSS to be scale variables and can be used as such.
- **5.11** Starting with **ref_no** in row 1, column 10, click on the cell and choose the appropriate measure. (You should not have to change this from the default).
 - Move down the column making the appropriate choice in each case. The first change is for the variable **smoker**, which will need to be changed to **nominal**.

You have now defined all the information that SPSS needs to know about the characteristics of your specific dataset. Your variable view pane should look like Figure 11.

Role of variables

The final column is concerned with role your variable is going to take in the analysis. This is a relative new column (version 18 onwards). In statistics certain procedures are only appropriate for certain types of variable. It is not unusual for a research study to use one variable as the outcome for one set of analyses and as the confounder in another set of analyses, which means that using this column may mean rechecking these classifications before each analysis. The roles recognised by SPSS are as follows:

Input – this is variable can be used as an independent predictor.

Target - this is the outcome of the analysis

Both - this can be either target or input

None - no role assigned

Partition – this variable can be used to partition the data, such as a variable which defines a test or training data set.

Split – I believe this is included for compatibility with other PASW programmes

There are very few procedures which require the role to be defined. We will leave all variables with the default role.

ile <u>E</u> dit	<u>V</u> iew <u>D</u> ata	Transform	<u>A</u> nalyze <u>G</u> ra	phs <u>U</u> tilitie:	s Add- <u>o</u> ns <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp					
a t			- 1	* =	i 🛍 🎆 👿 🚃 4	2 🔳 🛯		ABG		
	Name	Туре	Width	Decimals	Label	Values	Missing	Columns	Align	
1	ref_no	Numeric	4	0	Reference number	None	None	8	· ■ Right	\$
2	age	Numeric	2	0	Age last birthday	None	None	8	·≡ Right	5
3	sex	String	1	0	Sex of respondent	{F, Female}	None	8	≣ Left	
4	smoker	Numeric	1	0	Do you smoke?	{1, Yes}	None	8	ा Right	
5	cigs	Numeric	1	0	Do you smoke cigarettes?	{1, Yes}	None	8	· ■ Right	-
6	num_cigs	Numeric	3	0	How many cigarettes per day?	None	999	8	≡ Right	-
7	pipe	Numeric	1	0	Do you smoke a pipe?	{1, Yes}	None	8	· i Right	-
8	cigars	Numeric	1	0	Do you smoke cigars?	{1, Yes}	None	8	ा Right	- 8
9	give_up	Numeric	1	0	Have you tried to give up smoking?	{1, Yes}	None	8	· ■ Right	- 2
10	tax	Numeric	1	0	Do you think tax on tobacco is too	{1, Stongly	None	8	ः ■ Right	-
11	danger	Numeric	1	0	Do you think smoking is dangerou	{1, Stongly	None	8	· ■ Right	4
12	cinemas	Numeric	1	0	Do you think smoking should be al	{1, Stongly	None	8	🗐 Right	a l
13	Date_survey	Date	11	0	Date the survey was completed	None	None	8	· ■ Right	45
14	Date_submit	Date	11	0	Date the subject submitted their th	None	None	8	🗐 Right	45
15										
16										
17										
18										
19										
20										
21										
22										
23										
24										
25	4									
ata View	Variable View									

Figure 11 - the variable view screen with defined information

You may return to the **Variable View** window at any time if further changes are needed.

Task 6 Entering data

The **Data View** pane of the **Data Editor** window is used to enter the data. Displayed initially is an empty spreadsheet with the variable names you have defined appearing as the column headings.

The data that you need to enter is given in Task 2, but for your convenience the data table is reproduced here.

Ref number	Age	Sex	Smoke	Smoke Cigs	How many	Pipe	Cigars	Give up	Tax	Health	Cine ma	Date survey	Date submit
1	27	F	1	1	10	2	2	1	3	3	3	02-Nov-1995	25-Sep-1995
2	31	М	2						4	2	1	16-Nov-1995	04-Sep-1995
3	35	М	2						4	1	1	01-Dec-1995	21-Jul-1995
4	58	М	2						3	1	2	17-Nov-1995	05-Sep-1995
5	56	М	2						4	3	2	10-Nov-1995	30-Sep-1995
6	25	F	1	1	20	2	2	2	3	4	4	02-Dec-1995	10-Aug-1995
7	41	F	1	1	30	2	1	1	3	1	3	17-Nov-1995	24-Aug-1995
8	38	F	1	1	999	2	2	1	4	4	4	02-Dec-1995	30-Aug-1995
9	43	F	1	2		2	1	1	4	2	2	16-Nov-1995	01-Aug-1995
10	29	М	1	1	40	2	2	2	2	4	4	02-Dec-1995	26-Sep-1995

6.1 Click on the Data View tab of the Data Editor Window

- > To enter the first person's data, click the first cell of **ref_no**.
- ➤ Type 1.
- Press the TAB key or right arrow once and the heavy outline moves to the next column.
- > Type in **27** and press the **TAB** key.
- > Type in *F* and press the **TAB** key.
- > Type in **1** and press the **TAB** key.
- Follow the same procedure along the first row until all twelve data values are entered.
- **6.2** Move back to row 2, column 1 and start to enter the values for interview 2. Press the **TAB** key twice to skip over a column. Notice that a dot appears in the cell. This is the systemmissing value (see Figure 12).

	🖬 🕈 🔿	X	# * =	H	% 🖓 💼									
moker												Vis	ible: 12 of 12	Varia
	ref_num	age	sex	smoker	cigs	num_cigs	pipe	cigars	give_up	tax	danger	cinemas	var	1
1	1	uge 27		1									100	-
2	2	31								-	-			+
3														-
4	1													
5	1													-
6	1													
7	1													-
8														
9														
10														
11														
12														
13														
14														
15														
16														
17														-
18	-													-
19 20														-
20														-
22														-
23														-
24														+
25														-
26														
27	1													1
28	1													
29														
30														
31														
32														
33														
34														
35														
36														
~~~	<													>

Figure 12 - Data Editor window with the first and part of the second interview entered

6.3 Continue the process until the data from all ten interviews are entered. Your Data Editor screen should now look like Figure below. Some people find it easier to enter data by column rather than by row. The method is similar except that you use the down arrow key instead of the TAB key. The HOME and END keys take the cursor to the first or last column of a particular case. CTRL + HOME will take you to row 1, column 1, and CTRL + END to the last used cell.

ile	Edit	View	Data	Transfo	orm /	Analyze Gr	aphs U	tilities	Add-ons	Window	Help					
	_		_	-		<b>1</b>				*			A 14		AB	
				•				=			•		14			2
		ref	no	age	sex	smoker	cigs	n	um_cigs	pipe	cigars	give_up	tax	danger	cinemas	Date_survey
1			1				1	1	10	2	2	1	3			02-Nov-199
2			2		М		2						4	2	1	16-Nov-199
3			3	35	М		2						4	1	1	01-Dec-199
4			4		М		2						3	1	2	17-Nov-199
5			5		М		2						4	3	2	10-Nov-199
6			6				1	1	20	2	2	2	3		4	02-Dec-199
7			7	41	F		1	1	30	2	1	1	3	1	3	17-Nov-199
8			8	38	F		1	1	999	2	2	1	4	4	4	02-Dec-199
9			9	43	F		1	2		2	1	1	4	2	2	16-Nov-199
10			10	29	M		1	1	40	2	2	2	2	4	4	02-Dec-199
11																
12																
13																
14																
15																
16																
17																
18																
19																
20																
21																
22																
23																
		4														
Data V	liow	Variable	View													

Figure 13 - the data editor window with all interview data entered

### Task 7 Help system

More information about SPSS may be found in the on-line help facility. To access on-line help:

Click Help from the main menu.

A menu appears from which you can choose further topics.

Click **Topics** and an output screen similar to the one shown in Figure 14 should open in a new window.



Figure 14 - a typical Help screen from SPSS

There are also a series of 14 tutorials available from the Help menu. Some of these tutorials are directed at a more commercial or financial perspective rather than an academic use, but they can be used to familiarise yourself with the way SPSS works. They are not interactive tutorials.

### Task 8 Frequency tables - the frequencies procedure

- **8.1** If you want to know the number of males and females in this sample, you need to see the distribution of the variable **sex**, by using the **Frequencies** procedure:
  - > In the **Data Editor** window select **Analyze**.
  - > From the Analyze menu select Descriptive Statistics.

*Untitled1	[DataSet0] - PAS	W Statist	ics [	Data Editor	r	and the second second				-						
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit	<u>V</u> iew <u>D</u> ata	Transfor	m	<u>A</u> nalyze	Graph	s <u>U</u> tilitie	s Add	ons	Window	<u>H</u> elp						
			`	Rep	orts		•			7 💷		A		ABC		
				D <u>e</u> s	criptive	Statistics	•		23 Frequen			<u> </u>				
				Tab	les		•		Descripti	ves						_
	ref_no	age	se	Cor	npare M	eans	•	1.7	Explore		give_up	tax	danger	cinemas	Date_survey	D
1	1	27	F	<u>G</u> er	ieral Lin	ear Model	•		Crosstat		1	3	3	3	02-Nov-1995	
2	2	31	М	Ger	erali <u>z</u> ed	l Linear Mo	odels 🕨	1.2	_	15		4	2	1	16-Nov-1995	
3	3	35	М	Mixe	ed Model	Is	•	1 7	Ratio			4	1	1	01-Dec-1995	
4	4	58		Cor	relate		•	1 7	P-P Plots			3	1	-	17-Nov-1995	
5	5	56		Reg	ression		•		🛃 Q-Q Plot		-	4	3		10-Nov-1995	
6	6	25	_	Log	linear		•	20			2	3	4		02-Dec-1995	
7	7	41		Cla	ssify		•	30	2	1	1	3	1	-	17-Nov-1995	
8	8	38		Dim	ension I	Reduction	•	99	2	2	1	4	4		02-Dec-1995	
9	9	43		Sca	le				2	1	1	4	2		16-Nov-1995	
10	10	29	М	-		tric Tests	•	40	2	2	2	2	4	4	02-Dec-1995	
11			_	Fore	ecasting		•									
12			_	Sun			•									
13			_	-	iple Res	sponse										
14			_	-		ue Analysis		_								
15			_		iple Imp	-										
10			_	-	nplex Sa		, í									
17			_		lity Cont		, í									
10			_		Curve			H								
20				RUC	- ourve											
20																
22																
23																
	1															
												***				
Data View	Variable View															
Frequencies.																

Figure 15 - the window with drop down menus from the Analyze command

> From the **Descriptive Statistics** submenu, select **Frequencies** (Figure 15).

🗟 Frequencies		×
<ul> <li>Reference number [</li> <li>Age last birthday [a</li> <li>Do you smoke? [sm</li> <li>Do you smoke cigar</li> <li>How many cigarette</li> <li>Do you smoke a pip</li> <li>Do you smoke cigar</li> <li>Have you tried to gi</li> <li>Do you think tax on</li> </ul>	Variable(s):	Statistics Charts Format
✓ Display frequency tables       OK     Paste	Reset Cancel H	Help

Figure 16 - the Frequencies options window

#### > Select Sex of respondent.

- Click the right pointing arrow head (>) to move sex into the Variables box (see Figure 16).
- > Click OK.

A frequency table is produced. Note that tables, statistics and charts are displayed in the **SPSS Viewer** window – a completely different window from the Data Editor (Figure 17).

记 *Output1 [Document1] - SPS	S Viewer						
File Edit View Data Transform	Insert Format Analyze	Graphs Utilities	Add-ons	Window Help			
i de 🖪 🗛 🔖 🖪 🐨 🦛	🔿 📄 🕌 📑 🖓	d 🗣 🖉 🖉	🖷 🗑 🗗	+++	+ -   🛍 🛙		
■ E Output     ■ E Log     ■ E Frequencies     → m Title	FREQUENCIES V /ORDER=ANAI		ex.				
	➡ Frequencie	S					
	[DataSet0]						
	Statistic	s					
	Sex of responden N Valid Missing	t 10 0					
		Sex	of respond	ent			
		Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Cumulative Percent		
	Valid Female	5	50.0	50.0	50.0		
	Male	5	50.0	50.0	100.0		
	Total	10	100.0	100.0		I	
< >							
	<u>.</u>				SPS:	5 Processor is ready	

Figure 17 - the SPSS Viewer (Output) window with a frequency table

The **SPSS Viewer** window has two panes, each with its own bottom and right scroll bars. The left pane contains an outline (index) of the results so far. The right pane contains the detailed tables, graphs and text output. Clicking on the + and - symbols in the left pane controls what output is displayed in the right pane. Clicking on the other section names in the left pane moves the focus of the right pane display so it starts the display at the selected item.

You can use the **Window** command to select which window you want to be in at any particular time.

Check that you can see the command lines above the output:

FREQUENCIES VARIABLES=sex /ORDER=ANALYSIS.

If this is not visible go to **Edit** and choose **Options** from the **viewer** tab tick the bottom left button labelled **Display commands in the log**. Click on **OK**. (this is dealt with in more depth in section 11)

#### 8.2 Click Window.

Note that there are currently 2 types of window:

- Untitled [Dataset0] SPSS Data Editor
- Output1 [Document 1] SPSS Viewer
- > Click SPSS Data Editor.

### Task 9 Saving files in SPSS

### Saving an SPSS data file

- 9.1 To save an SPSS data file:
  - > Select File in the Data Editor window (rather than File in the Viewer window!).
  - Select Save As (see Figure 18).
  - Ensure the desired directory is displayed in the Look in box. If you are using a file in one of the Computer Centre training rooms change the directory to: C:\Training\Stats.
  - > Type *smoking* in the File name box.
  - > Click Save.

🖬 Save Data As	;				×
Look in:	🛅 Stats		<b>ب</b>	) 🕬 🖽	
My Recent Documents					
Desktop					
My Documents					
	File name:	Keeping 12 of 12 variables.		_ [	Variables
5		smoking			Save
My Computer	Save as type:	SPSS (*.sav)		× _	Paste
My Network Places		<ul> <li>Write variable names to spreadsheet</li> <li>Save value labels where defined instead of date</li> <li>Save value labels into a .sas file</li> </ul>	ta valu		Cancel

Figure 18 - the Save/Save As data options window

SPSS saves the file as **smoking.sav** in the specified directory. Normal Windows rules apply to file names.

#### Saving an SPSS output file

- 9.2 To save an SPSS output file:
  - > Select File in the SPSS Viewer window.
  - Select **Save As** (see Figure 19).
  - Ensure the desired directory is displayed in the Save in box. If you are using one of the Computer Centre training rooms change the directory to C:\Training\Stats.
  - > Type *smoking* in the File name box.

> Click Save.

🖬 Save Output	As	_			$\times$
Look in:	📄 Stats		× Ø	1	
My Recent Documents					
Desktop					
My Documents					
My Computer					
My Network Places	File name: Save as type:	smoking Viewer Files (*.spv)			Save Paste Cancel

Figure 19 - the Save/Save As output options window

The saved **output** from SPSS appears in the file **smoking.spv**. This is the output produced by the various procedures, eg tables, means, plots. It does NOT contain all the values of the dataset variables nor all the label information so cannot be used like an SPSS data file for future analysis purposes. It is known as the spool file.

**Note** This file is not a text file - you must inspect such files by opening them via the **File** option in the **SPSS Viewer** window. To get other formats eg, text, you must select the desired items in the **Viewer outline** and use the **File Export** option (see Task 27 at the end of this document).

## Task 10 Leaving SPSS

#### 10.1 To leave SPSS:

- > Click File in the Viewer or Data Editor window.
- > Click Exit.

SPSS shuts down all open windows and exits. It prompts you if data and/or output have not been saved before exiting.

## Task 11 Opening a file

- **11.1** To open an existing file; in this case, **smoking.sav**:
  - Go back into SPSS 23.0.
  - > Click on **smoking.sav** in the file list.
  - ➢ Click OK.
  - > If **smoking.sav** is not listed, then click on **More files** and click on **OK**.
  - > Ensure the correct directory is specified in the **Look in** box (Figure 20)

🔛 Open Data					$\mathbf{X}$
Look in:	📄 Stats		*	\$ 19 📖	
My Recent Documents	smoking.				
Desktop					
My Documents					
My Computer					
	File name:	smoking.sav			Open
	Files of type:	SPSS (*.sav)		*	Paste
My Network Places	🗌 Minimize	string widths based on observed value	s		Cancel

Figure 20 - the open data file options window

- > Select **smoking**.
- Click Open.

### Task 12 Controlling your output

SPSS provides a number of useful commands for directing your output in a specific fashion. You can experiment with most of them in your own time. However, there are a few minor changes that would help the remainder of this practical.

- 12.1 From the main menu click on Edit.
  - > Click on **Options** in the submenu.

A dropdown menu of some complexity appears as in Figure 21.

Options				
General Viewer Data Currency Output Labels Charts Pivot Tables	File Locations Scripts			
Variable Lists	Output			
Display labels     Display names	No scientific notation for small numbers in tables			
◯ Alphabetical ④ File ◯ Measurement level	Measurement System:			
Windows	Language: English			
Look and feel:	Language: English			
Open syntax window at startup				
Open only one dataset at a time	Notification:           Image: Raise viewer window			
	Scroll to new output			
Character Encoding for Data and Syntax	Sound: 💿 None			
<ul> <li>Locale's writing system</li> </ul>	🔿 System beep			
O Unicode (universal character set)	◯ Sound			
Character encoding cannot be changed when any non-empty datasets are open	Browse			
OK Cancel	Apply Help			

Figure 21 - the General window from the Edit Options submenu

> Select the **General** tab (it may be displayed automatically).

At the top left is the **Variable Lists** section. These options specify how the list of variables offered in all SPSS procedures is composed. If you prefer your variables to be listed in alphabetical order, as opposed to entry (file) order, press the appropriate button. Also some users prefer to have the variable name and not its label displayed.

In the **Notification panel** of the Output section, you will see a Scroll to new output option. You are advised to always have this ticked.

If you make any changes to this **General** tab, click the **Apply** button before moving on. You may be advised that certain changes cannot be applied until you start SPSS again. Click on **OK** but remember when you have made all your changes you may need to leave SPSS and restart it from the SPSS 23.0 command.

**12.2** Select the **Viewer** tab (Figure 22).

🔄 Options 🛛 🗙					
General Viewer Data Currency Output	abels Charts Pivot Tables File Locations Scripts				
Initial Output State Item Icon: Item:	Title Font: Size: SansSerif V 14 V B I U				
Contents are initially:					
Shown     Hidden     Turte	Font: Size: SansSerif 10 B I U				
Justification: Align left Center	Text Output				
Align right	Font: Size: Monospaced V 10 V B I U				
☑       ☑       ☑       Display commands in the log					
OK Cancel Apply Help					

Figure 22 - the Viewer window from the Edit Options submenu

At the foot of the first column (**Initial Output State**) is a tick box labelled **Display commands in the log**. It is very helpful in any discussion of your output to have this command log available. If necessary tick the box by clicking on it. When you now run any SPSS command, your output file will include a representation of the choices you made from any drop-down menu. This takes the form of the commands generated in SPSS's own language. You can see this in Figure 23 on the following page where the first two lines in the right hand frame are the log generated by the particular request for a Frequencies count. This SPSS language is referred to as **syntax** and is a very powerful tool in the advanced use of the program.

The right hand frames of this screen allow you to change the default fonts used by SPSS in the production of output.

If you make any changes to this **Viewer** tab, click the **Apply** button before moving on. This practical does not intend to investigate any further tabs in the **Options** menu, so press **OK** to exit this section. (Remember to restart SPSS if you have been told it is necessary.)

### **Task 13 Procedure commands - Frequencies**

**Comments** Having created an SPSS dataset, SPSS procedures may be used to analyse and process the data. There are many different procedures in SPSS. The following sections describe the procedures **Frequencies**, **Descriptives**, **Crosstabs**, **Correlations** and **Graphs**. Now you need to decide what you want SPSS to do.

The questions you might wish to ask of the data include:

What is the distribution of each variable?

How many men and women are there?

Is there a correlation between tax, cinemas and danger?

#### **13.1** To generate a **Frequencies** table:

- > In the Viewer or Data Editor window, select Analyze.
- > From the Analyze menu, select Descriptive Statistics.
- > From the **Descriptive Statistics** submenu, select **Frequencies**.

The **Frequencies** box contains a list of variables in the **Data Editor**. Generate two frequency tables one for **sex** and one for **smoker**.

- Click Sex of respondent.
- ≻ Click ⇒.
- Click Do you smoke? [smoker].
- $\succ$  Click  $\blacktriangleright$ ,
- > Click OK.
  - Here, **Frequencies** is used to find the sex distribution of the sample and the distribution of the smokers. Examine the output. You should find that there are 5 women and 5 men, 6 smokers and 4 non-smokers and no missing values. The contents of the tables are the frequency and the percentage of the total number in the table.
  - You can alter the statistics included with this procedure. The default is number of valid cases and number of missing cases. The options available if you click the statistics button allow you to have other statistics such as mean, median, etc.


Figure 23 - the Output window from the Frequencies procedure

## Notes for advanced SPSS use:

Objective : to be able to repeat your analysis on another dataset, or at another time quickly and accuratly. This is most useful If you are intending to publish the results of your analysis as it is wise to keep a copy of the syntax used to create them.

- The command (or syntax) used here is included by SPSS.
- Go back to the analyze menu and choose the descriptive statistics and frequencies menu options as before. SPSS will have remembered what you have just asked it to do, and will have retained the options you had chosen earlier.
- This time click on Paste instead of OK.
- You have created a record of your analysis request in a new syntax file.
- Save this file and give it the name Analysis for Paper 1.sps.
- When you want to redo the analysis all you will have to do is highlight the commands in the file and click on **run current** (run is the *green triangle*).

# Task 14 Using summary statistics for continuous variables – the Descriptives procedure

With continuous variables, frequency tables are not always the best method of summarising. A better option would be to use a selection of summary statistics in place of a frequency table. Frequencies and crosstabulations are useful mainly for categorical variables, ie where the values represent categories such as male/female, nationality, class of university degree. However, variables like age and num_cigs have many values and for these continuous variables, statistics like the mean and standard deviation are sometimes useful.

- 14.1 In the Viewer or Data Editor window select Analyze.
  - > From the **Analyze** menu, select **Descriptive Statistics**.
  - > From the **Descriptive Statistics** submenu, select **Descriptives**.
  - > Select the variable Age last birthday [age] (see Figure 24).

Descriptives		×
<ul> <li>Reference number [</li> <li>Do you smoke? [sm</li> <li>Do you smoke cigar</li> <li>How many cigarette</li> <li>Do you smoke a pip</li> <li>Do you smoke cigar</li> <li>Do you smoke cigar</li> <li>Have you tried to gi</li> <li>Do you think tax on</li> <li>Do you think smokin</li> </ul>	Variable(s):	Options
Save standardized values as	variables	
OK Pas	te Reset Cancel H	Help

Figure 24 - the Descriptives option window

> Click the **Options** button in the **Descriptives** window.

A number of statistics options which are appropriate for continuous variables are displayed (Figure 25).

Descriptives: C	ptions 🔀
i Mean [	Sum
Dispersion	
Std. deviation	Minimum
Variance	Maximum
🔽 Range	S.E. mean
Distribution	Skewness
Display Order	
<ul> <li>Variable list</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>Alphabetic</li> </ul>	
Ascending mea	ns
O Descending me	ans
Continue	Cancel Help

Figure 25 - the statistics options for continuous variables

- > Select Mean, Standard deviation, Minimum, Maximum and Range.
- Click **Continue**.
- > Click OK.

The required statistics are displayed in Figure 26. You may have to scroll down in the SPSS Viewer window to see this.



Figure 26 - SPSS viewer output from Descriptives procedure

# Task 15 Producing a bar chart from frequencies

- **15.1** To create a bar chart for **sex** using the **Frequencies** box:
  - > In the Viewer or Data Editor window click Analyze.
  - > From the **Analyze** menu, click **Descriptive Statistics**.
  - > From the **Descriptive Statistics** submenu, click **Frequencies**.
  - > Click **Reset**.
  - > Select Sex of respondent [Sex] and then click  $\rightarrowtail$  (Figure 27).

Frequencies		$\mathbf{X}$
<ul> <li>Reference number [</li> <li>Age last birthday [a</li> <li>Do you smoke? [sm</li> <li>Do you smoke cigar</li> <li>How many cigarette</li> <li>Do you smoke a pip</li> <li>Do you smoke cigar</li> <li>Have you tried to gi</li> <li>Do you think tax on</li> </ul>	Variable(s):	Statistics Charts Format
Display frequency tables	Reset Cancel	Help

Figure 27 - the Frequencies option window

> Click Charts (see Figure 28).

🖬 Frequencies: Charts 🛛 🗙
Chart Type
○ None
Bar charts     ■
O Pie charts
O Histograms:
With normal curve
Chart Values
Frequencies OPercentages
Continue Cancel Help

Figure 28 - the Charts submenu window from Descriptives

- > Click the **Bar chart(s)** option and click on **Continue**.
- > Click **Display Frequency Tables** to suppress the display of the frequency table.
- ➢ Click OK.

SPSS draws the chart and shows it in the **Output Viewer** window (Figure 29). (You may need to scroll down to see the complete chart.)

记 *Output1 [Document1] - SPSS	S Viewer	
	Insert Format Analyze Graphs Utilities Add-ons Window Help	
🗁 🖬 🚑 💁  📴 🦛 (	●   ■ 늘 ■   ● ●   幸   毎   ●   ●   ●   ●   ●   ●   ●   ●   ●	
⊡+€ Output ⊡-€ Frequencies	Frequencies	
Notes	[DataSet1] C:\User\Stats\smoking.sav	
🔚 Bar Chart	Statistics	
	Sex of respondent N Valid 10 Missing 0	
	Sex of respondent	
	5- 4-	
	5 3-	
	-c Lreduency	
	1-	
	oli internationali in	
	Sex of respondent	
	Sex of respondence	
J	SP55 Processor is ready H: 0.85, V	V: 5.98 in

Figure 29 - SPSS viewer output produced using the Bar Chart option from the Frequencies procedure

To display the chart in a full screen window, double-click on the chart in the **Viewer** pane (this takes you into the SPSS **Chart Editor** window where the chart may be amended to suit personal preferences e.g. colour choice, labels, etc) (Figure 30).



Figure 30 - SPSS Chart Editor window

> To leave the Chart Editor window click File/Close.

If the chart editor is left open, then the image of the chart in the Viewer window is displayed as "crossed-out" and cannot be displayed properly until the chart editor is closed.

## Task 16 Displaying histograms

- **16.1** Use the **Frequencies** dialog box to request a histogram:
  - Select Analyze.
  - > Select **Descriptive Statistics**.
  - > Select Frequencies.
  - > Click Reset.
  - > Select Age last birthday [age].
  - > Click Charts.
  - Click Histogram(s).
- **16.2** To display a normal curve on the chart:
  - Select With normal curve.
  - > Click **Continue** and then click **OK**.
  - > The histogram appears in the **Output Viewer** window (Figure 31).



Figure 31 - SPSS viewer output produced using the histogram option from the Frequencies procedure

## Task 17 Crosstabulation

The data may be broken down further with crosstabulation (multi-way) tables, which show the joint distribution of two variables' values. If you want to know how many women are smokers, the two numerical variables, **sex** and **smoker** are used in Crosstabs.

- **17.1** To get a crosstabulation:
  - Select Analyze.
  - > Select **Descriptive Statistics**.
  - Select Crosstabs.
  - > Select **Do you smoke? [smoker]** from the source variable list.
  - > Click  $\rightarrow$  adjacent to the **Row(s)** text box.
  - > From the source variable list select **Sex of respondent [sex]**.
  - ➢ Click ➡ adjacent to the Column(s) text box.
  - > To see the crosstabulation click **OK**.

SPSS produces a crosstabulation of **smoker** by **sex**. The cells of the table show the **Counts**. You should find that all five women are smokers and only one man is a smoker.

## Adding cell percents and the chi-square statistic

#### 17.2 Select Analyze.

- > Select **Descriptive Statistics**.
- > Select Crosstabs.

The table contents can be changed by clicking on the **Cells** button and specifying options. Some useful options are:

Expected	prints expected values
Row	includes row percentages
Column	includes column percentages

- **17.3** Modify the **Crosstabs** table to request statistics and include the options **Row**, **Column**, **Total** and **Expected** as follows:
  - Click the Cells button.
  - Select the additional options Expected, Row Percentages, Column Percentages and Total Percentages.
  - Click Continue.

The Statistics button in the Crosstabs window requests statistics.

Click the Statistics button.

Chi-square requests a Chi-Square ( $\chi^2$ ) test of independence and a Fisher's Exact test when there are fewer than 20 cases in a 2 x 2 table.

- Select the **Chi-square** option.
- > Click Continue.

> Click **OK** (see the results in Figure 32).

*Output1 [Document1] - SPSS '											
ne cuic view Data Transform Ins	sert Format Analyze	Graphs	Utilities Ac	ld-ons Wii	ndow H	Help	_	_	_	_	
🗁 🖬 🗛 🖻 🔯 🖨 🛪	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	3				in nit i t	- 00			Ē.	
=+€ Output			**						<u>▲ ↑</u>	+	
🖮 🖪 Crosstabs	Crosstabs										
Title											
	[DataSet1] C:	\User	\Stats\s	moking.	sav						
Case Processing											
Do you smoke? * {	Case Processing Summary										
Chi-Square resis						Cas	es				]
				Valid		Miss	ing		Tota	1	
	Deven en elve et	0	N	Perce		N	Percent	N		Percent	
	Do you smoke? * respondent	Sexor	1	0 100.	0%	0	.0%		10	100.0%	
		Do you	smoke? * S	ex of resp	onden	t Crosstab	ulation				
							Sex of respo	ndent			
						Female	e Male	-	Total		
	Do you smoke?	Yes	Count	0				1	6		
			Expected % within		inke?	3.		.0 x 1	6.0		
			% within	Sex of	ione :						
		No								-	
			Expected	Count		2.	-	.0	4.0		
			% within	Do you srr	ioke?	.09	6 100.0	% 1	00.0%		
			% within responde	Sex of		.09	6 80.0	%	40.0%		
			% of Tota			.09	6 40.0	%	40.0%		
		Total	Count				5	5	10		
			Expected		-10	5.			10.0		
					ioke?						
			responde	ent		100.09	6 100.0	% 1	00.0%		
			% of Tota	d		50.0%	6 50.0	% 1	00.0%		
				Chi Ca							
					Asy	mp. Siq.	Exact Sic	. (2-	Exact	t Sig. (1-	1
	Rearcon Chi Paur		Value		(2	-sided)	sided	)	si	deđ)	4
	Likelihood Ratio		8.456	1		.003					
	Fisher's Exact Tes	st						.048		.024	
	N of Valid Cases		10							-	l
				count less	than 5.	. The minir	num expect	ed coun	ntis 2.0	10.	
	b. Computed o	nly for a	2x2 table								
	Fisher's Exact Tes	are ion ^b st 0%) hav	% within responde % of Tota Count Expected % within % within % within % within % within % within % within % within 8 win	ent Count Do you sm Sex of ent Count Do you sm Sex of ent Count Count Count Count Count Count I Count I Count I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	uoke?	2. .09 .09 .09 .09 .09 .50.09 100.09 .50.09 .50.09 .50.09 .50.09 .010 .053 .004	6 20.0' 6 10.0' 0 2 6 100.0' 6 80.0' 6 40.0' 5 0 5 6 50.0' 6 50.0' 6 50.0' Exact Sig sided	%         ////           %         ///           0         ///           %         1           %         1           %         1           %         1           %         1           %         1           %         1           %         1           %         1           %         1           %         1           %         1	00.0% 40.0% 10 10.0 00.0% 00.0% Exact si	: Sig. (1- ded) .024	

Figure 32 - SPSS viewer output from Crosstabs procedure (with Chi-squared tests)

Suppose that you wish to test the hypothesis: 'Men and women are not equally likely to smoke' against the alternative: 'Men and women are equally likely to smoke'. Since 100% of the cells have expected counts of less than 5, the Chi-Square test is not valid. However, the Fisher's Exact test (p=0.048 - statistically quoted as p<0.05) which is also given, lends support to the hypothesis that women and men in this sample are not equally likely to smoke.

## Task 18 Clustered bar chart

- **18.1** A clustered bar chart can give a picture of the crosstabulation in Task 17:
  - > In the Viewer or Data Editor window select Graphs.
  - Select Legacy Dialogs.
  - Select **Bar** (for bar charts).
  - To see the number of people who smoke or not, with separate bars for men and women click Clustered in the Bar Charts box.
  - To see the counts of cases summarised in the bars click **Define** to specify the variables in the chart (see Figure 33).

🔚 Define Clustered Bar: Summaries for Groups of Cases 🛛 🔀						
Reference number [ref Age last birthday [age] Do you smoke cigarette How many cigarettes a Do you smoke a pipe? [ Do you smoke cigars? [ Have you tried to give Do you think tax on tob Do you think smoking is Do you think smoking s	Category Axis: Sex of respon Define Clusters by Do you smoke Panel by Rows: Nest variables Columns:	e Statistic dent [sex]	Titles Options			
Template Use chart specifications f File OK	rom: Paste Reset (	Cancel Help	]			

Figure 33 - the Define options window in the Clustered Bar Chart procedure

- > Click Cum. N in the Bars Represent panel.
- > From the source variable list select Sex of respondent [sex].
- Click to place sex underneath Category Axis.
- From the source variable list select Do you smoke? [smoker].
- Click adjacent to Define Clusters by.
- Click OK.
- **18.2** Is the graph what you expected? Look carefully at the right hand cluster of bars. (It should NOT look like the graph below in Figure 34)

Try re-running this procedure but this time in the **Define** section select **N of cases** in the **Bars Represent** panel. (You should now get a graph like Figure 34). See that you understand the difference between the two graphs you have produced using SPSS.



Figure 34 - SPSS viewer output from Clustered bar chart

18.3 Use options to include error bars on the bar chart

There are three different options for error bars – if you are not sure which to use please ask a statistician, all are valid options.

## Task 19 Analysing data in subgroups - Split File

A procedure can produce analyses for separate subgroups rather than for all the data if the **Split File** option is selected before a procedure is carried out. The variable (or variables) that define the subset are given in the **Split File** command. For example, you may want to run descriptives first for the women, and then for the men and thus produce separate mean values of age for men and women.

🚰 Split File	$\mathbf{X}$
<ul> <li>Reference number [ref</li> <li>Age last birthday [age]</li> <li>Do you smoke? [smoker]</li> <li>Do you smoke cigarette</li> <li>How many cigarettes a</li> <li>Do you smoke a pipe? [</li> <li>Do you smoke cigars? [</li> <li>Have you tried to give</li> <li>Do you think tax on tob</li> <li>Do you think smoking is</li> <li>Do you think smoking s</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Analyze all cases, do not create groups</li> <li>Compare groups</li> <li>Organize output by groups</li> <li>Groups Based on:         <ul> <li>Groups Based on:</li> <li>a Sex of respondent [sex]</li> </ul> </li> <li>Sort the file by grouping variables</li> <li>File is already sorted</li> </ul>
Current Status: Analysis by gro	ups is off.
OK Paste	Reset Cancel Help

Figure 35 - the Split File option box

- 19.1 Select Data.
  - Select Split File (see Figure 35).
  - Select Organise output by groups.
  - > Move Sex of respondent [sex] to the Groups Based on box.
  - > Click OK.
  - Note Split File sorts your data. In the Data Editor, observations are no longer in Ref_no order.
- **19.2** To see how **Split File** processing works, from the **Analyze** menu, select the **Descriptive Statistics** option to run **Descriptives** for **Age last birthday [age]**.
  - Click OK.

In the **Viewer** window, you should find that the mean age for women is 34.8 years and the mean age for men is 41.8 years.

All subsequent analyses are done separately for each group.

- **19.3** To turn off the **Split File** option:
  - Select Data.
  - > From the **Data** menu, click **Split File**.
  - > Click Analyze all cases.

> Click **OK** to select analysis for the whole dataset.

## Task 20 Excluding observations – Select cases

A procedure can produce analyses for a specific group rather than for all the data if the **select cases** option is selected before a procedure is carried out. The variable (or variables) that define the group retained for the analysis are given in the **Select Cases** command. For example, you may want to exclude all the data from people who do not smoke when looking at some of the smoking questions.

😤 Select Cases					
Reference Number [Ref     Age last Birthday [age]     Do you smoke? [smoker]     Do you smoke cigarette     How many cigarettes p     Do you smoke a pipe [pi     Do you smoke cigars? [     Do you smoke cigars? [     Do you think Tax on tob     Do you think Smoking is     Do you think smoking sh     Do yoat think smoking sh     Do tate survey completed [     Date survey completed [	Select         All cases         If gondition is satisfied         If         Rangion sample of cases         Sample         Based on time or case range         Range         Use filter variable:         Image         Output         Image Eliter out unselected cases         Cgpy selected cases to a new dataset         Dataget name:         Delete unselected cases				
Current Status: Do not filter cases					
OK Paste Reset Cancel Help					

Figure 36 - the Select Cases option box

- 20.1 Select Data.
  - > Select **Select cases** (see Figure 36).
  - Click on If condition is satisfied
  - Choose Filter out unselected cases Choosing the option delete unselected cases will permanently delete the other cases and is not recommended!
  - Click on the If under the words If condition is satisfied
  - > Choose **Do you smoke** from the list of variables
  - > Click the arrow to put the variable in the top right box
  - > The word smoker should appear in the window
  - Type =1 after the word smoker (see Figure 37)
  - Click on Continue.
  - Click on OK

<ul> <li>Reference Number (Ref</li> <li>Age last Birthday (age)</li> </ul>	#	smoker	=1					
A Sec of respondent [sec]     Do you annot? [anolar]     Do you annot? [anolar]     Mow many cigarettes p.     Do you annote a pape [st.         Do you annote a pape [st.         Do you annote a pape [st.         Do you their a not be.         Do you their annoted is annoted to gree u.         Do you their annoted is annoted to gree u.         Do you their annoted is annoted to gree u.         Do you their annoted is annoted to gree u.         Do you their annoted is annoted to gree u.         Do you their annoted is annoted to gree u.         Do you their annoted is annoted to gree u.         Do you their annoted to gree u.		•	•	> 34 1 0	0 5 2 Delete	9	•	Function group: All Automatic CDF & Noncentral CDF Conversion Current DeterTime Date Antimetic Functions and Special Variable

Figure 37 -the Select cases If option box

- 20.2 To see how Select Cases processing works, from the Analyze menu, select the Descriptive Statistics option to run Frequencies for the two smoking variables Do you smoke cigarettes and have you tried to give up smoking.
  - > Click OK.

In the **Viewer** window, you should find that 83% of the smokers smoke cigarettes and two thirds of them have tried to give up smoking.

All subsequent analyses are done separately for each group.

- 20.3 To turn off the Select Cases option:
  - Select Data.
  - > From the **Data** menu, click **Select Cases.**
  - Choose All Cases
  - Click on OK.

## Notes for advanced SPSS use

If you have identified an individual or group of individuals which should be excluded from the analysis for a paper you are intending to publish, save an account of those you are intending exclude. Use the paste function to create the syntax that you have used. Add text to the syntax file above the select statement to remind you why they have been excluded.

## Task 21 Modifying variables

## Recoding values into a new variable

Sometimes you might want to use data in a different form, such as looking at the age groups young and old (eg 30 and under, 31 and above) rather than exact age. For instance, the values of **age** could be recoded to 1 and 2, representing say, young (1) and old (2).

- **21.1** You can create a new variable to hold the new recoded values and preserve the original values:
  - Select Transform.
  - > From the **Transform** menu click **Recode Into Different Variables**.

A dialog box opens up where you can select the variable you want to recode (Figure 38).

- 21.2 To recode age to agecat (age category):
  - > Click Age last birthday [age] in the source variable list.
  - ➢ Click ➡ to transfer age.

Give an Output Variable Name, eg, agecat.

- > Click in the Label text box and type Age category.
- > Click **Change** to register the new output variable.

Recode into Different \	ariables	$\mathbf{X}$			
<ul> <li>Reference number [ref</li> <li>Sex of respondent [sex]</li> <li>Do you smoke? [smoker]</li> <li>Do you smoke cigarette</li> <li>How many cigarettes a</li> <li>Do you smoke a pipe? [</li> <li>Do you smoke cigars? [</li> <li>Do you smoke cigars? [</li> <li>Have you tried to give</li> <li>Do you think tax on tob</li> <li>Do you think smoking is</li> <li>Do you think smoking s</li> </ul>	Numeric Variable -> Output Variable: age> agecat	Output Variable Name: agecat Label: Age category Change			
	If (optional case selection condition)				
OK Paste Reset Cancel Help					

Figure 38 - the Recode submenu options window

Once you have decided which variables to recode you need to specify the old and new values.

#### **21.3** Select the **Old and New Values** box (Figure 39).

To create a **young** (to be called **1**) and an **old** category (to be called **2**), recode the values 0 through to 30 into the new value 1:

- > Click on the **Range**, **LOWEST through** button.
- Type 30 in the text box.

🗟 Recode into Different Variables: Old a	nd New Values 🛛 🗙
Old Value	New Value
🔿 Value:	⊙ Value: 2
	O System-missing
○ System-missing	Copy old value(s)
<ul> <li>System- or user-missing</li> </ul>	
O Range:	Old> New: Add Lowest thru 30> 1
	Change
through	Remove
Range, LOWEST through value:	
Range, value through HIGHEST:	
31	Output variables are strings Width: 8
◯ All other values	Convert numeric strings to numbers ('5'->5)
Continue	Cancel Help

Figure 39 - the Old and New values options window in Recode

- Click Value in the New Value area.
- > Type 1 in the **New Value** text box.
- > Click Add to place this specification in the Old-> New text box.
- Repeat to recode values (ages) 31 and above to new value 2, using Range, value through HIGHEST. Remember to click Add.
- > Click **Continue** to return to the **Recode into Different Variables** window.
- Click OK to perform the recoding operation.

SPSS adds the new variable **agecat** to the next empty slot in the **Data Editor** window. Look at the right-most column in the **Data View** pane of the window (Figure 40). Also look at the **Variable View** pane to see that **agecat** has been added as variable number 13. Whilst in the variable view panel you might like to add the value labels for this new variable **agecat** (see Task 5 if you have forgotten how).

🚉 *smoking.s	sav [DataSet1]	- SPSS Data I	Editor											
	v Data Transfo													
0 🖬 🗛	🖭 🕈 🕈	1 🖬 📑	M 📲 💼	🗄 🏚 📖	🗞 🕑 🌑									
1 : ref_num	1												Visible: 13 of 13	Variables
	ref_num	age	sex	smoker	cigs	num_cigs	pipe	cigars	give_up	tax	danger	cinemas	agecat	
1	1	27	F	1	1	10	2	2	1	3	3	3	1.00	~
2	2	31	M	2						4	2	1	2.00	
3	3	35	M	2						4	1	1	2.00	
4	4	58	M	2						3	1	2	2.00	
5	5	56	M	2						4	3	2	2.00	
6	6	25	F	1	1	20	2	2	2	3	4	4	1.00	
7	7	41	F	1	1	30	2	1	1	3	1	3	2.00	
8	8	38	F	1	1	999	2	2	1	4	4	4	2.00	
9	9	43	F	1	2		2	1	1	4	2	2	2.00	
10	10	29	M	1	1	40	2	2	2	2	4	4	1.00	
11	<				Ш									>
Data View 🛛 🖓	ariable View										SPSS	Processor is read	,	

Figure 40 - SPSS Data Editor window with extra variable 'agecat' added

**21.4** Use **Frequencies** to tabulate **agecat** and check the results. You should find that 3 subjects are aged 30 or less and 7 subjects are age 31 or more.

🚰 *Output1 [Document1] - SPSS Viewer						
File Edit View Data Transform Insert Format Analyze	e Graphs Utilities	s Add-ons W	indow Help			
🗠 🖬 🛕 💁 📴 📥 🐡 📖 🔚 🗣 🔐	🚱 🌑   🚝	<b>F</b> 18 <b>B</b>	• : • •	♦   + -   Ш		₽ ◆
HISTOGRU     HISTOGRU     /HISTOGRU     /ORDER=AI     ORDER=AI     Age category	WALYSIS. ies C:\User\Stat stics 10	-	.Sav			
		Age cat	egory			_
		Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Cumulative Percent	]
	g (30 and under)	3	30.0	30.0	30.0	
	1 and over)	7	70.0	70.0	100.0	
Total		10	100.0	100.0		
					CDCC Dra	ocessor is ready

Figure 41 - SPSS viewer output from recoded variable 'agecat'

# Notes for advanced SPSS use

If you are intending to publish this work at some point you will need a permanent record of the recoding statements that you have carried out. Use the Paste function to save a record to your file **Analysis for Paper 1.sps** 

You may find this easier to do all your recoding using Syntax, once you learn how to alter the syntax successfully.

## **Computing new variables**

**Compute** commands are so-called because they assign values to variables. They may be used, for example, when data are not in the form required. For example, the log of age may be required for analysis rather than actual age. The SPSS **Data Editor** window contains the **Transform** menu with the **Compute** option.

**21.5** To create a new variable firstly choose a name for the variable, eg logage.

To calculate the log of age:

- Select Transform.
- Select Compute.
- > Type *logage* in the **Target Variable** box (Figure 42).

Compute Variable Target Variable: logage Type & Label Reference number [ref Age last birthday [age]	Numeric Expression: LN(age)	×
<ul> <li>Age rast bitriday [age]</li> <li>Sex of respondent [sex]</li> <li>Do you smoke? [smoker]</li> <li>Do you smoke cigarette</li> <li>How many cigarettes a</li> <li>Do you smoke a pipe? [</li> <li>Do you smoke cigars? [</li> <li>Have you tried to give</li> <li>Do you think tax on tob</li> <li>Do you think smoking is</li> <li>Do you think smoking s</li> <li>Age category [agecat]</li> </ul>	+       >       7       8       9       -       All         -       <=	sbles:
If (optional case sele	Ction condition) Rnd Sin OK Paste Reset Cancel Help	~

Figure 42 - the Compute Variable options window

Next, in the **Numeric Expression** text box you need to give the instructions for calculating the variable, in this case taking the log of **age**.

- **21.6** Initially you need to find the appropriate function. Log is an arithmetic function:
  - Click on Arithmetic in the Function group window.
  - Scroll down and click on Ln in the Functions and Special Variables window.
  - Click the up arrow next to the Function group box.
  - **Note** A **Function group** must be highlighted as well as a **Function** otherwise the up arrow alongside the functions group does not operate.)
    - Select Age last birthday (age).
    - Click by to move age to replace the ? in the function definition.

Now you have a compute statement: logage=LN(age).

Click OK.

SPSS creates the new variable and places it in the next free column in the **Data Editor** window. The newly created variable **logage** may now be used in SPSS procedures.

### Using the IF Statement to Compute New Variables

The If statement can be used in conjuction with the Compute command you have just used to assign values to variables for a specific group of observations. They may be used, for example, when you are required to combine the results from

two or more variables. For example, you might want to identify the group of people who are smokers who strongly agree with the statement that smoking is dangerous to their health. The SPSS **Data Editor** window contains the **Transform** menu with the **Compute** option and the **If** box.

**21.7** To create a new variable firstly choose a name for the variable, eg **dangersmok**.

We are going to give those who smoke and think it dangerous the value 1 for **dangersmok**:

- Select Transform.
- > Select **Compute**.
- > Type *dangersmok* in the **Target Variable** box (Figure 42).

Next, in the **Numeric Expression** text box you need to give the instructions for calculating the variable, in this case just type **1**.

- **21.8** Now you need to go to the **If** box so that you can say who it is who are going to have the value of **1**:
  - > Click on IF.
  - Choose the lower option of "Include if case satisfies condition:"
  - Put the variable smoke into the top window and type =1 and and then add the variable danger by clicking on "Do you think smoking is dangerous?". Then type "=4". The result should look like the figure bellow.

Compute Variable: If Cases		x
<ul> <li>Reference Number [</li> <li>Age last Birthday [ag</li> <li>Sex of respondent [</li> <li>Do you smoke? [sm</li> <li>Do you smoke? [sm</li> </ul>	Include all cases     Include if case satisfies condition:     smoker=1 and danger=4	
<ul> <li>How many cigarette</li> <li>Do you smoke a pip</li> <li>Do you smoke digar</li> <li>Do you thied to giv</li> <li>Do you think arowin</li> <li>Do you think smokin</li> <li>Do you think smokin</li> <li>Date thesis submitt</li> <li>Mate survey complet</li> <li>Mate survey complet.</li></ul>	+ < > 7 8 9 - <= > 2 4 5 6 • = -= 1 2 3 ( & 1 0 . = ~ () Delete	Function group: All Arithmetic CDF & Noncentral CDF Conversion Current Date/Time Date Arithmetic Date Creation
	Continue Cancel Help	

Figure 43 - The If box from the compute variable window

- Note This will only compute 1 for those people who have both the features smoking =1 and danger=4. This means that all those who do not have both these functions will have a missing value for this new variable. If you would like to give the other people a value such as zero, you have to go through this procedure a second time, this time choosing **0** as the value you are calculating, and also using the statement "**smoke=2 or danger ne 4**" Here **ne** can be used by SPSS to mean not equal to, you can also use the button provided which has the symbol ~=. Don't forget to use the **or** option to join the conditions together in the second statement instead of **and**.
  - ➢ Click OK.

SPSS creates the new variable and places it in the next free column in the **Data Editor** window. To retain the syntax open the compute window back up and press paste.

# Task 22 Working with Dates in SPSS

Dates can be manipulated in excel prior to importing the data, alternatively SPSS handles dates in a similar way to that used by excel. SPSS holds a date as the number of seconds since a particular date some time in 1582. Thus when two dates are subtracted from each other you need to divide by 60*60*24 to get back to the number of days.

We can use the two date functions here to ask how many days after the subject submitted their thesis they filled in the questionnaire.

- Select Transform.
- Select Compute.
- > Type *days* in the **Target Variable** box (Figure 42).

Next, in the **Numeric Expression** text box you need to give the instructions for calculating the variable, in this case calculating the number of **days**.

Enter the expression:

(date_survey - date_submit)/(60*60*24)

The variables can be entered by typing their variable name **or** by selecting them from the list of variables.

Click OK.

SPSS creates the new variable and places it in the next free column in the **Data Editor** window. The newly created variable **days** may now be used in SPSS procedures.

## Important

Save this syntax using paste from the Figure 37 window you will need it for a future task 26

Check the variable days by using the frequency procedure and asking for a histogram from the charts options.

## **Task 23 Correlations**

The correlations procedure calculates the (Pearson parametric) correlation between variables and is used to measure the strength of linear association between 2 variables.

- 23.1 To obtain the Pearson correlation coefficients of tax, danger and cinemas:
  - Select Analyze.
  - Select Correlate.
  - Select **Bivariate** (see Figure 44).

Bivariate Correlations		×						
<ul> <li>Age last birthday [a</li> <li>Do you smoke? [sm</li> <li>Do you smoke cigar</li> <li>How many cigarette</li> <li>Do you smoke a pip</li> <li>Do you smoke cigar</li> <li>Do you smoke cigar</li> <li>Age category [agecat]</li> <li>Iogage</li> </ul>	Variables: Do you think tax on tob Do you think smoking is Do you think smoking s	Options						
Correlation Coefficients	Spearman							
Test of Significance								
Flag significant correlations								
OK Paste	Reset Cancel H	lelp						

Figure 44 - the Bivariate Correlations options window

- > Move the following to the Variables box:
  - Do you think tax on tobacco too high? (tax)
  - Do you think smoking is dangerous to your health? (danger)
  - Do you think smoking should be allowed in cinemas? (cinemas) to the Variables box.
- Click Flag significant correlations to put a tick in the box. (It may already be ticked)
- Click OK.

There is a significant correlation between **danger** and **cinemas** (0.746, p<0.05), which means that people who feel that smoking is dangerous also tend to think that smoking should not be allowed in cinemas.

Since the three variables in this correlation analysis are ordinal in measurement scale, it would have been statistically more proper to use Spearman's Rank correlation coefficients to measure the relationship.

**23.2** Repeat the above analysis but this time select the **Spearman** correlation coefficient. Note that the same relationship remains significant, although its value is slightly lower than the Pearson correlation (Figure 45).

🚰 *Output1 [Document1] - SPSS Viewer					
File Edit View Data Transform Insert Format Analyze	Graphs Utilities Add-ons \	Vindow Help			<u>الالا</u>
		<b>₩</b> 8 <b>₩₩</b> 1 <b>+</b> -1			
Nonparametric Correla     /PRINT=SF     /NISSING=     /NISSING=     Correlations     Nonparametric Correlations	S=tax danger cinemas EARMAN TWOTAIL NOSIG PAIRWISE. Petric Correlations C:\User\Stats\smoking	J. 30V			
		Correlations			
			Do you think tax on tobacco is too high?	Do you think smoking is dangerous to your health?	Do you think smoking should be allowed in cinemas?
Spearman's rh	Do you think tax on tobacco is too high?	Correlation Coefficient	1.000	183	588
	tobacco is too nigh?	Sig. (2-tailed)		.612	.074
	Do you think smoking is	N Correlation Coefficient	10	10	10
	daniaerous to vour	Sig. (2-tailed)	183 .612	1.000	.742 [*] .014
	health?	N	.612	10	.014
	Do you think smoking	Correlation Coefficient	588	.742*	1.000
	should be allowed in cinemas?	Sig. (2-tailed)	.074	.014	
	omornuo.	N	10	10	10
*. Correlatio	n is significant at the 0.05 level	(2-tailed).			
< >					
				SPSS Proces	sor is ready

Figure 45 - SPSS viewer output from Spearman's Rank correlation

# Task 24 Creating charts - drawing a scatter plot

A scatter plot graphs one variable against another, and often gives an idea of any associations in the data. In this example, we will plot **danger** along the horizontal (X) axis and **cinemas** along the vertical (Y) axis.

- 24.1 To use the Graphs menu to specify the scatter plot:
  - Click Graphs and Legacy Dialogs.
  - > From the menu select **Scatter/Dot**.
  - > To specify the scatter plot click **Simple Scatter**.
  - > Click **Define** in the **Simple Scatterplot** dialog box (see Figure 46).

🖬 Simple Scatterplot		×
<ul> <li>Reference number [ref</li> <li>Age last birthday [age]</li> <li>Do you smoke? [smoker]</li> <li>Do you smoke cigarette</li> <li>How many cigarettes a</li> <li>Do you smoke a pipe? [</li> <li>Do you smoke cigars? [</li> <li>Have you tried to give</li> <li>Do you think tax on tob</li> <li>Age category [agecat]</li> <li>logage</li> </ul>	Y Axis:   Do you think smoking should be   X Axis:   Do you think smoking is dangero   Set Markers by:   <	Titles Options
Template		]
Use chart specifications	rom:	
ОК	Paste Reset Cancel Help	

Figure 46 - the Scatterplot design window from Graph Scatter/Dot procedure

- Click on Do you think smoking should be allowed in cinemas? [cinemas] in the source variable list.

- Click on Do you think smoking is dangerous to health? [danger] in the source variable list.
- Click by to place danger in the X Axis text box.

Using a variable such as **sex**, we can also see if there is a difference between the men and women.

- > Click Sex of respondent [sex[ in the source variable list.
- Click by to place sex in the Set Markers by box.
- > Click OK.

This produces a plot of **cinemas** versus **danger**; the variable **sex** is used to mark each observation on the plot as male and female. Where duplicate values occur, this may not be an accurate representation. Have a look at the data points for the data in Figure 47.



Figure 47 - the SPSS viewer output from Scatter/Dot in Graphs

## Task 25 Saving an updated copy of the data

In order to save your recoded information and computed variables permanently, you must save the current copy of the data in the **Data Editor** window. For now, save the file under a new name, **smoking2**. You can save the file under the same name or a different name.

- **25.1** To save the file:
  - > Click File in the Data Editor window.
  - > From the File menu click Save As.
  - Ensure the directory in the Save in box is correct. If you are using one of the Computer Centre training rooms change the directory to C:\Training\Stats.
  - > Type *smoking2.sav* in the File name box.
  - > Click Save.

An updated copy of the data is saved in **smoking2.sav**.

# Task 26 Getting SPSS to read data from other spreadsheet formats e.g. Excel

When working the Computer Centre training rooms you will notice that in the directory C:\Training\Stats there is a file called Large Smoking Data.xls. This is an Excel spreadsheet that has the same 12 variables as you have used so far in this workbook, but with many more cases than you have entered.

#### 26.1 Browse to C:\Training\Stats

> Double click on the file name to enable Excel to open the file (Figure 48).

You will notice that the first row of the Excel spreadsheet contains the names of the twelve variables exactly as you used them before. You will analyse this large file using SPSS.

Close the Excel file at this point.

2	<u>File E</u> dit	<u>V</u> iew	Insert	Format ]	<u>T</u> ools	<u>D</u> ata	Windo	w <u>H</u> elp										Type a	question for he	p <b>- </b> -  €	5
n	🖻 🖬 🗞	6	A #2	XBA	а.,	010	- CI	- Q.	Σ	AL ZI M	100%	• ?	Aria	al		• 10 •	в	7 Π	EEE	- <u>A</u>	
-		- -	f _×	00				68		2 7 8 7 10	9 87	-4	•								
	A		В	C		D		E		F	G		Н	1		J		K	L	M	1
	ref_num	age		sex		smoker		cigs			pipe	cigar		give_up	tax	(	dar	nger	cinemas		
2	1		27				1		1	10	2		2		1		3		-	3	
3	2			М			2										4		-	1	
4	3			M			2										4			1	
5	4			M			2										3			2	
6	6			M			2				-						4			2	
7	E 7		25 41				1		1	20			2		2		3			4 3	
8 9	1		41				1		1	3U 999			2		1		3 4			3 4	
9 10	e 9		43				1		2	999	2		1		1		4			2	
11	10			M			1		- 2	40			2		2		2			4	
12	11		57				1		1	40			2		1		4			3	
13	12		53				1		1	30			2		1		4			2	
4	13			M			1		1	80			2		2		1			2	
5	14		54				1		1	50			2		1		4			4	
6	15	5	37	M			1		1	50	2		2		1		2		2	2	
17	16	6	36	M			2										2		4	2	
18	17		57				1		1	30			2		1		4			2	
19	18			M			1		1	30			2		1		1			2	
20	19			M			1		1	50			2		1		1			2	
21	20			M			1		1	40			2		2		2			1	
22	21			M			1		1	40			2		2		2			3	
23	22			M			1		1	10			2		2		2			4	
4	23			M			1		2		2		2		1		1			4	
25 26	24		54				2								_		4			2	
ю !7	25		60 63				2		1	50	2	-	2	1	1		4			3	
:/ 18	26			M			1		1	50			2		1		4			2	
9	27		46				1		1	50			2		1		2			2	
0	29			M			1		1	50			2		2		2			1	
11	30			M			1		1	50			2		1		2			3	
2	31			M			1		1	10			2		1		2			2	
3	32			M			1		1	80			2		1		1			3	
4	33		54				1		1	30			2		1		4			2	
5	34			M			1		1	70			2		1		1			1	
6	35		48				1		1	50			2		1		3			3	
-			ioking D	11. / T			- 4		4		- I+ - ^		-				-		4 I	4	

Figure 48 - the first part of the Excel data file Large Smoking Data.xls

- **26.2** To input the Excel file:
  - > Go back into SPSS 23.0 for Windows.
  - Select **Cancel** to the query window.
  - > From the File menu select Open and then select Data.
  - Ensure the directory in the Look in box is correct. If you are in one of the Computer Centre training rooms change the directory to C:\Training\Stats.
  - The Files of type window will be showing SPSS. This needs to be changed to Excel by clicking on the down arrow at the right-hand end of the Files of Type box

and selecting **Excel (*xls, *xlsx, *xlsm)**. The file name **Large Smoking Data** should now be visible (see Figure 49).

Double click the file name.

🗿 Open Data	
Look in:	🔁 Stats 🕑 🔊 🖽 📰
My Recent Documents	Large Smoking Data
Desktop	
My Documents	
My Computer	File name: Large Smoking Data.xls Open
	Files of type:     Excel (*.xls, *.xlsx, *.xlsm)     Paste
My Network Places	Minimize string widths based on observed values     Cancel

Figure 49 - the SPSS Open File menu window showing an Excel file for input

- The next menu confirms that the Excel file has been recognised. You should check that the box Read variable names from first row of data is ticked (Figure 50).
- Click Continue

🖬 Opening Exce	el Data Source	×						
C:\User\Stats\La	C:\User\Stats\Large Smoking Data.xls							
🔽 Read variab	le names from the first row of data							
Worksheet: Large Smoking Data [A1:L1823]								
Range:								
Maximum width for string columns: 32767								
	Continue Cancel Help							

Figure 50 - the options window showing an Excel file for input

You now have a data file in SPSS with all the additional cases. Unfortunately all the information you entered into the **Variable View** part of your small original SPSS file is missing. You could re-type this information as you did earlier, but you can get SPSS to import the original.

#### 26.3 In the Data Editor window click on Data.

> Click on **Copy Data Properties** (see Figure 51).

🚘 Copy Data Properties - Step 1 of 5	X
<ul> <li>Welcome to the Copy Data Properties Wizard.</li> <li>Copy Data Properties can copy selected variable and dataset properties from an open dataset or external SPSS data file to the active dataset.</li> <li>You can also copy properties from one variable to another within the active dataset.</li> <li>Data properties are copied but not data values.</li> </ul>	
Choose the source of the properties	-
🔿 An open dataset	
smoking.sav [DataSet1]	
An external SPSS data file	
C:\User\Stats\smoking.sav Browse	
O The active dataset ( Untitled2 [DataSet2] )	
< Back Next > Finish Cancel Help	

Figure 51 - the Copy Data Properties menu window

You wish to use the properties of the file **smoking.sav** which you saved earlier in C;\Training\Stats.

- Select An external SPSS data file and either by direct entry or browsing insert into the file name box C:\Training\Stats\smoking.sav
- Click Finish. (If you were to click Next, you would have a number of alternatives offered that would allow you to control more finely what properties are copied)
- **26.4** Using procedures you mastered earlier, answer the following:- (keep your SPSS output for Task 24)

How many females answered the questionnaire? (Clue Task 12).

Show a histogram of respondent's ages? (Clue Task 15).

Are men and women equally likely to smoke? (Clue Task 16).

What is Spearman's rank correlation between **danger** and **cinemas**? (Clue Task 20).

## Task 27 Saving output from SPSS into word processor documents e.g. Microsoft Word

The output file produced by SPSS can only be read by the SPSS program. This is complicated further by the fact that **versions from 15 onwards are unable to read the output from previous versions of SPSS**. Most users would like to take share their results and discuss them with other members of their research team, many of whom may not have access to SPSS, and if they do not quite the same version. Sharing results usually means transferring all or parts of their SPSS output into a Microsoft package. We shall learn how this can be achieved by moving output to a Microsoft Word document.

There are two ways of achieving this process. Let's first consider allowing SPSS to do most of the work.

- 27.1 Make sure you are in the SPSS Viewer window.
  - > From the **File** menu select **Export**.

All  All  All  All  All  All  All  All			
Document			
Туре:		Options:	
Word/RTF (*.doc)	*	Layers in Pivot Tables	Honor Print Layer setting (set in Table
A rich text document containing b graphics will be created. The grap	phics will be	Include Footnotes and Caption	Yes
embedded in the document. No g are available. File Name:	raphics options	Change Options	Browse
embedded in the document. No g are available. File Name: c:\user\stats\wordoutput.doc	raphics options		Browse
embedded in the document. No g are available. File Name: c:\user\stats\wordoutput.doc Graphics Type:	raphics options	Options:	Browse
embedded in the document. No g are available. File Name: c:\user\stats\wordoutput.doc Graphics			Browse

Figure 46 – the SPSS Export Output window

- > In the Objects to Export box, ensure that All Visible objects is selected
- Under Document Type select Word/RTF file (*.doc) from the drop down menu.
- > In the File Name box type C:\Training\Stats\wordoutput.
- ➢ Click OK.
- **27.2** Minimise SPSS Viewer and Data Editor windows and then browse to and open the document **wordoutput.doc**. You will see that all your original output has been transferred.

- **27.3** There is an alternative way of achieving the movement of small amounts of output where you have much more control. Keep your **wordoutput** document open but position your cursor at the end of the present file. Minimise the Word document and maximise SPSS viewer file.
  - Point and click on any single table or chart in your output. You will notice that a rectangular box appears around the table.
  - Click on Edit and select Copy.
  - > Maximise your Word file and click on Edit and Paste.

This process will work for transferring all text, tabular or chart output from SPSS.

- Note Never copy and paste SPSS Graphs
- **Note** Always export graphs before placing them in your Power point presentations. Failure to do this can make them **invisible** in the presentation if you are using a computer which does not have SPSS.

## Task 28 Analysis – Box plot

Box plots are a good way to investigate continuous variables graphically. A continuous variable here is the number of days between handing in the thesis and completing the survey. Here we might want to see whether the smokers have submitted the survey in the same time as the non-smokers.

- Select Graphs
- Select Legacy dialogues
- Select Boxplot
- Select Simple and Summaries for groups of cases. See Figure 52

Boxplot
<mark>₿₿₿₿</mark> Simple
Clustered
Data in Chart Are
<ul> <li>Summaries for groups of cases</li> </ul>
◯ Summaries of separate <u>v</u> ariables
Define Cancel Help

Figure 52 - box plot options

- > Click on **Define**
- > Select days and put it into the variable box
- Select Do you smoke (smoker) and put it into the Category Axis box (Figure 53).

Define Simple Boxplot: Sur	mmaries for Groups of Cases	23
<ul> <li>Reference Number [Ref</li> <li>Age last Birthday [age]</li> <li>Sex of respondent [sex]</li> <li>Do you smoke cigarette</li> <li>How many cigarettes p</li> <li>Do you smoke cigarest [</li> <li>Do you smoke cigarest [</li> <li>Do you smoke cigarest [</li> <li>Do you think Tax on tob</li> <li>Do you think smoking is</li> <li>Do you think smoking is</li> <li>Do you think smoking sh</li> <li>Date survey completed [</li> <li>Date thesis submitted [d</li> <li>smoker=1 (FILTER) [filte</li> </ul>	Variable:         Image: Category Axis:         Image: Do you smoke? [smoker]         Image: Do you smoke? [smoker]	Options
ОК	Paste Reset Cancel Help	

Figure 53 - define boxplot options

#### Select OK

You should have a box plot like the one below





- > Click on this graph with the left mouse button to select it
- Click on the graph with the right mouse button to be given the option of editing it or exporting it.
- Go back to the define boxplot popup window to be given the chance to paste this syntax into your syntax window so that you can redo the analysis again at any time.

## Task 29 Analysis - T-test

T-tests are used to demonstrate whether two groups are the same with respect to a variable which has a continuous normal distribution. For example a variable which has a continuous normal distribution in this data set is the number of days between submitting the thesis and filling in the survey, and two groups might be those people who smoke and those people who are not smokers as defined by the question 'Do you smoke?' We are testing whether the means demonstrated in the box plot above are statistically significantly different.

- Select Analyze
- Select Compare Means
- Select Independent-Samples T Test
- Put days in the Test Variable box
- > Put Do you smoke in the Grouping variable box
- Select Define Groups
- > Type 1 in the box labelled Group 1 (See Figure 55 define groups)
- > Type **2** in the box labelled Group 2
- Select Continue

ſ	🛃 Define Groups 🗾 🔤
	O Use specified values
	Group <u>1</u> : 1
	Group <u>2</u> : 2
	O Cut point:
	Continue Cancel Help
	Group <u>2</u> : 2

Figure 55 - define groups

The independent samples T test box should now look like this:

ŧ.	UP U	- 8000	AZ OLAIP	
14	Independent-Samples	T Test	# Sector	
le	<ul> <li>ref_num</li> <li>Age last Birthday [age</li> <li>Sex of respondent [s.</li> <li>Do you smoke cigare.</li> <li>How many cigarette</li> <li>Do you smoke a pipe</li> <li>Do you smoke cigares.</li> <li>Do you smoke cigars.</li> <li>Have you tried to giv</li> <li>Do you think Tax on t.</li> <li>Do you think smoking.</li> </ul>		<u>Test Variable(s):</u>	Options Help
-8				

Figure 56 – Independent Samples T test

### > Select OK

The output should look like this:

Cog     C		- <b>Tes</b>	-		6 <b>61</b> -1	i-41								
					Group Stat	ISUCS								
🖻 — 🔁 T-Test			Do vo	N	Mean	Std. Deviatio	Std. Error Mean							
Title	d	ays	Yes	1458	88.3086	27.5442	0 .7213	36						
Notes			No	364	93.8929	27.6623								
Active Dataset				004	00.0020	21.0020	1.1400							
Group Statistics														
🛁 🔐 Independent San								Indepe	ndent Samp	les Test				
						Levene's Test	for Equality of							
Explore						Variar	ices				t-test for Equality	ofMeans		
Title													95% Confidence	Interval of the
- R Notes													Differ	ence
Active Dataset						F	Siq.	t	df	Sig. (2-tailed)	Mean Difference	Std. Error Difference	Lower	Upper
Title	d	lays	Equally	ariances										
Case Proces		- , - ,	assum	ed		.014	.906	-3.457	1820	.001	-5.58422	1.61528	-8.75221	-2.41623
🖃 🔂 days			Equal v	ariances no	t			-3,448	556.454	.001	-5.58422	1.61943	-8.76517	-2.40326
Title			assum	ea				0.440	000.404		0.00422	1.01343	0.10011	2.40320
🗕 🔚 🗔 Boxplot 🔽														

Figure 57 - T-test output

The value labelled Sig here is not the p value of the t-test. This is the value of the **Levene's Test for Equality of Variances.** The p-value for the t-test is labelled 'Sig (2-tailed).

- Can you find the mean difference and 95% confidence intervals? These are -5.58 with a 95% confidence interval of -8.72, -2.42
- > Can you tell which group has the lower mean number of days?
- > What is the mean number of days for each group?

## Task 30 Analysis Non-parametric tests

The continuous variable of days analysed in Task 26 with a t-test could have been analysed using a Mann Whitney test instead:

- Select Analyze
- Select Nonparametric tests
- Select 2 Independent samples
- > Move Days to the Test Variable List
- Move Smoker to the Grouping Variable box
- Click on Define Groups
- > Type 1 in the box labelled **Group 1** (See Figure 55 define groups)
- Type 2 in the box labelled Group 2
- Select continue

Test type should be Mann-Whitney U (See below)

Two-Independent-Samples Tests
Image: Sector of the sector
OK <u>P</u> aste <u>R</u> eset Cancel Help

Figure 58 - Two–Independent–Samples Tests options

- Click on OK
- > The output should appear as below in Figure 59.
- > Note the **p** value is referred to as Asymp Sig (2-tailed).



Figure 59 - Output for Mann-Whitney Test

## Task 31 Analysis – Other

**Objectives** To identify where to find the statistics options that are relevant to the analysis you wish to do for your current work.

- One way **ANOVA** can be found under **Compare Means**.
- Two way ANOVA, ANCOVA etc, can be found under General Linear Model Univariate.
- Linear Regression can be found under Regression Linear.
- Logistic Regression can be found under either Regression Binary Logistic, or Loglinear
- Kaplin Meier Plots can be found under Survival Kaplan Meier
- Cox proportional Hazard's modeling can be found under Survival Cox Regression
- Factor analysis can be found under Data Reduction as can Principle components analysis
- Roc Curves can be found under Analyze and not Graphs

## Graphs

If you can't find the graph you are looking for under **Legacy dialogue**, you can create your own using **Chart Builder**. It is often quite time consuming to do this properly and outside the scope of this course.

# **Appendix A References**

One of the reasons for using SPSS in the University is that it has a very comprehensive on-line documentation facility. When the software is installed you should take a copy of the 'Manuals' disc. On this you will find a series of 'pdf' files that give full documentation in each area of SPSS. Listed below are the titles of the important files.

Manuals relating to statistical issues:

- SPSS Brief Guide 23.0
- SPSS Base User's Guide 23.0
- SPSS Tables 23.0
- SPSS Data Preparation 23.0
- SPSS Advanced Models 23.0
- SPSS Regression Models 23.0
- SPSS Trends 23.0
- SPSS Categories 23.0
- SPSS Classification Trees 23.0
- SPSS Complex Samples 23.0
- SPSS Conjoint 23.0
- SPSS Exact Tests
- SPSS Missing Value Analysis 23.0

Manuals relating to computational issues:

- SPSS 23.0 Algorithms
- SPSS 23.0 Command Syntax Reference
- SPSS Programming and Data Management, 4th Edition